
Kelso Planning Commission  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting at 6:00p.m. 
Tuesday, March 10, 2015  

City Hall Council Chambers, 203 S. Pacific Ave.  
 

 
Approved/  

Agenda               Denied Remarks 
Call to Order: 
 

1. Roll Call. 

 
 

 
 

Approve Minutes: 
 

1. December 9, 2014 meeting minutes. 
2. January 6, 2015 meeting canceled. 
3. February 10, 2015 meeting canceled. 

 

 
 

 
 

Presentation: 
 

  

Public Hearing:  
 

  

Citizen Business:   
 

  

Commission Business: 
1. Introduction of Daniel Graves.  Appointed to Planning Commission 

position no. 3 
2. Land use discussion on micro-wineries. 

  

Action/Motion Items: 
 

1. Appoint Commission Chair. 
2. Appoint Commission Vice-Chair. 
3. Rules of the Commission. 

 

  

Adjournment: 
   
Next regularly scheduled meeting April 7, 2015. 
 

  

 
City of Kelso Community Development Department (360) 423-9922.   

The agenda can be found on the Kelso website at http://www.kelso.gov/planning-commission/agendas.  

Posted:   March 6, 2015 

http://www.kelso.gov/planning-commission/agendas


 

Kelso Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, December 9, 2014 

6:00 pm – 6:20 pm 
 
 
Commissioners Present:   Rick VonRock, Clark Hislop, Charles Hendrickson, James Webb. 
 
Staff Present:  Michael Kardas, Community Development Director; Amy Mullerleile, Recording Secretary. 
 
Call to Order: 

Chair Rick VonRock called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 
 

Minutes: 
Commissioner Hendrickson made the motion, seconded by Commissioner Hislop to approve the minutes 
of August 12, 2014.  Motion carried, all in favor. 

 
Public Hearing: 

Commissioner VonRock closed the Public Hearing from the October 14, 2014 meeting at 6:03 pm. 
 

Commission Business: 
  

1. Recommendation to Council on proposed amendments for the update of the Comprehensive 
Plan. Commissioner Webb asked if any changes had been made to the Plan since the last meeting, 
described the document as vague, and asked if it was legally binding. Mr. Kardas responded saying 
that it is written to give general policy guidance while still providing enough flexibility to change 
development regulations without requiring a Comprehensive Plan amendment, a potentially lengthy 
and complicated process. The Plan is a binding document in that other planning documents must be 
consistent with its provisions. No changes were made to the document since it was last reviewed by 
the Commission. 
 
MOTION: Commissioner VonRock asked that a motion be made to recommend the adoption of the 
updated Comprehensive Plan to the City Council. Commissioner Hendrickson made the motion, 
seconded by Commissioner Hislop. Motion carried, all in favor. 

 
Other Business: 

1. Commissioner VonRock asked Mr. Kardas for an update on building permits. Mr. Kardas said that 
building permits were doing well, most of them are tenant improvement projects, but there was an 
application for a new home. There was discussion regarding vacant land in the City. 

2. Commissioner VonRock asked Mr. Kardas what the City has gotten out of the West Main 
Realignment Project; there was discussion about the impacts of the project, future phases, traffic 
circulation, and traffic signals. 

 
Adjournment: 
 

There being no further business, Commissioner Webb made the motion, seconded by Commissioner 
Hislop to adjourn at 6:20 pm. 

 
        
Rick VonRock, Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
        
Respectfully submitted: Amy Mullerleile, Recording Secretary  

12/9/2014 Planning Commission Minutes  Page 1 of 1 
 



Community Development Department 

203 S. Pacific Avenue, PO Box 819 Kelso, WA  98626 

 

 

 

 

 

Building & Planning Phone:  360-423-9922  Engineering Phone:  360-423-6590  Fax:  360-423-6591 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 

 

Planning Commission Meeting  

Tuesday, January 13, 2015 

CANCELED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you should have any questions in regards to the Planning Commission, please contact:  

Michael Kardas, Community Development Director at (360) 577-3376.  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
Posted:   Friday, January 9, 2015 



Community Development Department 
203 S. Pacific Avenue, PO Box 819 Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

 
 

Planning Commission Meeting  
Tuesday, February 10, 2015 

CANCELED 
 

 
 
 
 
 

If you should have any questions in regards to the Planning Commission, please contact:  
Michael Kardas, Community Development Director at (360) 577-3376.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Posted:   Wednesday, January 28, 2015 

 
 

Building & Planning Phone:  360-423-9922  Engineering Phone:  360-423-6590  Fax:  360-423-6591 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the Planning Commission 

City of Kelso, Washington 
 

 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Land use discussion on micro-wineries. 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director/City Engineer 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Development  
 
For Agenda of:  March 10, 2015   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
 
KMC Table 17.15 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City’s current land use table allows a microbrewery use within certain commercial areas within the 
City and not within others and further restricts that use from the ground floor in certain areas in the 
Commercial Town Center zone; the table is silent as to microwinery use. 
 
City staff finds that the land use impacts of microwineries are similar to the impacts of microbreweries 
and these uses are combined elsewhere in the code, so that both uses should be allowed in compatible 
areas. 
 
Microbreweries and microwineries are defined terms within the code and describe a much smaller 
manufacturing use that of larger facilities; these uses are commonly associated with the retail sales of 
wine and beer and accessory items and often have restaurant and tasting areas so that there is a 
commercial element to the facilities that make them compatible with a commercial and retail 
environment. 
 
The City would like to expand the commercial areas that allow these type of uses to promote a mix of 
commercial and retail uses within the City’s commercial areas in order to promote economic 
development and  the retail shopping experience in the City’s commercial areas. 
 
 
 



PC MEETING 03/10/2015 
MICRO-WINERY DISCUSSION 

Table 17.15  

Table 17.15 Allowable 

Land Uses 

Residential 

Single-

Family  

Residential 

Multifamily 

Open 

Space 

Commercial—

Town Center 

Commercial—

West Kelso 

Commercial 

Neighborhood  

Service 

Center 

Commercial 

Specialty 

Retail  

and 

Services 

Commercial—

Major Retail 

Industrial 

Light  

Manufacturing 

Industrial 

General  

Manufacturing 

RSF RMF OPN CTC CWK CNH CSR CMR ILM IGM 

 …  

Microbrewery or 

Microwinery* 
      II5, 7 II  II  II II II II 

Printing and publishing         I I 

Recycling centers       II II  I I 

Sales of items manufactured 

on site         II II 

Skating rink—indoor               II III III 

Vehicle towing and storage 

services 
                II II 

Vocational schools         I I 

Winery/brewery         I I 

Page 1 of 2 
 



PC MEETING 03/10/2015 
MICRO-WINERY DISCUSSION 

I = Type I Permitted Use 

II = Type II Administrative Use 

III = Type III Conditional Use 

* = Defined Term 

Letters and numbers refer to footnotes and regulatory notes within Sections 17.15.030 and 17.15.040. 
 
 
17.15.030 Footnotes. 
 
A. The following numbers correspond to the numbers identified at the intersection of land use and use district lines in Table 17.15: 

5. Not permitted on the ground floor on Pacific Avenue South between Oak and Maple Streets. 

7. Building footprints not exceeding five thousand square feet are permitted; provided, that facilities shall screen all outdoor storage except for outdoor 
storage for agricultural produce sales, or landscaping retail sales. Buildings of a footprint greater than five thousand square feet, but less than ten thousand 
square feet, may be allowed through administrative review. 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/kelso/html/Kelso17/Kelso1715.html%2317.15.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/kelso/html/Kelso17/Kelso1715.html%2317.15.040


CITY OF KELSO PLANNING COMMISSION 
RULES OF THE COMMISSION 

 
 
SECTION I: AUTHORITY 
1.1 Title 2.60.010 of the Kelso Municipal Code and 35A.63.020 RCW authorize the 
creation of a “Planning Agency” to be known as the Kelso Planning Commission.  Said 
agency serves in an advisory capacity to city officials and to the City Council.  The Planning 
Commission consists of seven five regular members. 
 
1.2 The seven five regular members shall be appointed by the Mayor subject to 
confirmation by the City Council. 
 
1.3 Terms of the members shall be as follows: 

a.   Positions 1, 2, and 3 shall have their terms expire in November of the same year.  
b.   Positions 4, and 5, 6 and 7 shall have their terms expire in November of the 

same year two years hence. 
 

1.4 Vacancies occurring otherwise than through the expiration of terms shall be filled 
for the unexpired term. Members may be removed, after a public hearing, by the appointing 
official,Mayor, with the approval of the City Council for inefficiency, neglect of duty or 
malfeasance in office or other just cause. 
 
1.5 At least five four (54) members of the Planning Commission shall be residents of the 
city. Up to two one (21) members need not be residents of the city but shall must reside 
within the city’s urban growth areaCowlitz County and meet one of the following eligibility 
requirements.  

a. Own at least a 50% interest in property within the city limits of the City of Kelso; or 

b. Own at least a 50% interest in a business that operates within the city limits of the 

City of Kelso.  

In the event a Planning Commission member is serving, who is not a resident of the city, 
such person shall not be authorized to serve as Planning Commission Chair.  In the further 
event that a duly appointed member shall move from within the city to outside the city or 
cease to own at least a 50% interest in property or a business within the city limits of the City of 
Kelso,, that person may remain on the Planning Commission with the consent of the mayor 
and approval of the council for the duration of the unexpired term. 
 
1.6 The Planning Commission shall have all the powers and perform each and all of the 
duties specified by Chapter 35A.63 RCW, except those powers and duties delegated to the 
City’s Hearings Examiner, together with any duties or authority which may be conferred 
upon them by statute or ordinance or as directed by Council action. The performance of such 
duties and the exercise of such authority shall be subject to each and all of the limitations 
expressed in such legislative enactment or enactments. 
 
1.7 The position of a member shall be forfeited and become vacant for failure to attend 
three regular consecutive meetings of the Planning Commission, unless the reason for such 
absence is an illness of the commission member or their immediate family, a death in the 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 1 of 7 

  



commission member’s family, or similar personal emergency. The member must notify the 
Chair and Secretary in advance of the meeting or as close thereafter as circumstances will 
reasonably allow. The position of a member shall be forfeited and become vacant for failure 
to attend a total of six regular meetings in a calendar year regardless of the cause.excused 
by a majority of the members of the Planning Commission. 
 
SECTION II:  OFFICERS 
2.1 The officers of the Planning Commission shall consist of a Chair and Vice-Chair 
elected from the members of the Planning Commission, and such other officers of the 
Planning Commission may, by majority vote, approve and appoint.  The Director of the 
Community Development Department or designee shall serve ex-officio without vote as the 
Secretary. 
 
2.2 The election of officers shall take place once a year on the occasion of the first 
meeting in January of each calendar year.  The term of office of each officer shall run until 
the subsequent election, provided however, any officer may be removed at any time by vote 
of the Planning Commission entered on record.  If for any reason Planning Commission 
officers are not elected at the first January meeting, the existing members shall continue to 
serve until an election is held. 
 
 
SECTION III:  CHAIR 
3.1 The Chair shall preside over the meetings of the Planning Commission and may 
exercise all the powers usually incident to the office retaining, however, as a member of the 
Planning Commission, the full right to have a vote recorded in all deliberations of the 
Planning Commission. 
 
3.2 The Chair shall have full power to create temporary committees of one or more 
members.  Temporary committees may be charged with such duties, examinations, 
investigations and inquiries relative to one or more subjects of interest to the Planning 
Commission.  No standing or temporary committee shall have the power to commit the 
Planning Commission to the endorsement of any plan or program without the approval of 
the Planning Commission.  No committee shall constitute a quorum of the Planning 
Commission. 
 
3.3 The Vice-Chair shall, in the absence of the Chair, perform all the duties incumbent 
upon the Chair. 
 
3.4 In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, the members present shall choose a 
temporary Chair for the meeting. 
 
 
SECTION IV:  SECRETARY 
4.1 The Secretary shall keep a record of all meetings of the Planning Commission and, 
when requested to do so of its committees, these records shall be retained in the office of 
the City of Kelso Community Development Department. 
 
4.2 When the Chair of the Planning Commission is not available, the Secretary is 
authorized to sign minutes, recommendations, findings of fact and other Planning 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 2 of 7 

  



Commission documents for the Planning Commission subsequent to action on these matters 
by the Commission. 
 
 
SECTION V:   MEETINGS 
5.1 All regular meetings will be held in the City of Kelso Council Chambers, Kelso, 
Washington, unless otherwise scheduled and noticed in advance and shall be open to the 
public. 
 
5.2 All regular meetings shall be held the second Tuesday of each month and will begin 
at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practical. 
 
5.3 When it appears to the Secretary that the amount of business to be transacted at an 
upcoming regular meeting is in excess of that which could be completed prior to 9:00 p.m., 
the Secretary may arrange for a scheduled time, place and date for a continuation of the 
meeting.  If a continuation is scheduled in advance, the Secretary shall prepare a joint 
agenda which clearly indicates the time, place and date of the continued meeting and which 
enumerates the items of business to be held each day.  No item of business set for the 
continued meeting date shall be heard previously.  Prior to the start of the regular meeting, 
a copy of the agenda shall be conspicuously posted near the entrance to the meeting place.  
Any regular meeting scheduled for continuance by the Secretary under this section shall be 
automatically continued to the date, time and place so scheduled. 
 
5.4 When a regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the Planning Commission shall 
convene on the next regular business day.  Provided, however that the regular meeting shall 
be scheduled in the week prior to or immediately following the Thanksgiving and 
Christmas/New Year holidays. 
 
5.5 The Planning Commission may adjourn any meeting over to the next regular 
meeting by a majority vote of the quorum or may designate a specific day, time and place, 
but such order shall apply only to the date and time named in the order.   
 
5.6 Special meetings shall be at the call of the Chair, by the Secretary in consultation 
with the Chair or at the written request of at least four appointive members of the Planning 
Commission; provided that written notice of such special meeting so called shall be 
delivered personally, by facsimile, e-mail or by the U.S. Postal Service at least twenty-four 
hours before the time of such meeting as specified in the notice to each member and to each 
local newspaper of general circulation which has on file with the governing body a written 
request to be notified of such special meeting or of all special meetings.  Each local radio or 
television station that has on file with the governing body a written request to be notified of 
such special meeting or of any special meetings shall also be notified.  The call and notice 
shall specify the time and place of the special meeting and the business to be transacted.  
Such written notice may be dispensed to any member who has on file with the Secretary a 
written waiver of notice of all special meetings or who, prior to or at the time of any special 
meeting, files a written notice may also be dispensed with as to any member who is actually 
in attendance at any special meeting. 
 
5.7 Whenever any Planning Commission agenda item is continued to the next regular 
meeting or to a special meeting, a notice of such continuance shall be conspicuously posted 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 3 of 7 

  



on the next business day immediately after the time of continuance on or near the door of 
the place where the meeting was held. 
 
5.8 If no matters over which the Planning Commission has jurisdiction are pending 
upon its calendar, a regular meeting may be cancelled at the call of the Chair or Secretary.  
Notice of cancellation may be communicated to Planning Commission members 
telephonically or by email. 
 
5.9 Should there not be a quorum of the Planning Commission present; the members 
present shall adjourn to the next regular meeting, unless a special meeting is called as 
provided in these rules.  In the case that no members are present, the Secretary shall 
adjourn to the next regular meeting unless a special meeting is scheduled as provided in 
these rules.  
 
5.10 All meetings of the Planning Commission shall be recorded.  The Secretary shall 
cause minutes of the meetings to be prepared in a timely manner. 
 
5.11 Except as modified by these Rules of the Planning Commission, Robert’s Rules of 
Order shall govern the conduct of meetings. 
 
 
SECTION VI:  AGENDA 
6.1 An agenda shall be prepared by the Secretary for each meeting, which shall 
substantially conform to the following outline for the order of business: 
 

I. Call to Order: 
1. Roll call 

II. Approval of Minutes: 
III. Presentations: 
IV. Explanation of rules of procedures (for hearings): 
V. Citizen Input: 
VI. Action/Motion Items: 
VII. Commission Business: 
VIII. Date of next regular or special meeting 
IX. Adjournment or continuance to a date, place and time certain 
 
 

SECTION VII:  QUORUM 
7.1 A simple majority of the currently appointed members shall constitute a quorum for 
the transaction of business, except as provided in section 7.2 below.  The Planning 
Commission can receive reports or petitions whenever a quorum is present. 
 
7.2 If there is a desire of any Planning Commission member to abstain from voting 
because of a potential conflict of interest, this view should be expressed as soon as the 
potential conflict becomes apparent and before any discussion is held on the business 
before the Planning Commission.  The members shall then step down and leave the hearing 
room.  When a member has stepped down because of a possible conflict of interest, the 
member shall not be counted as present for the purposes of establishing a quorum during 
consideration undertaken while the member is not sitting with the Planning Commission. 
 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 4 of 7 

  



 
SECTION VIII:  ABSENCE OF MEMBERS 
8.1 Upon request of a member, or and notification of the Chair and Secretary on behalf 
of the member, the absence of a memberPlanning Commission may be excused the absence 
from any meeting for reasonable causereasons described in Section 1.7 of these rules. 
 
8.2 In the event of a member incurring three unexcused absences in any six-month 
period, the member’s record shall be forwarded by the Secretary to City Council for 
consideration. 
 
 
SECTION IX:  VOTING 
9.1 All Planning Commission members present, including the presiding member, shall 
vote when any action is taken. 
 
9.2 A majority vote of the quorum shall decide questions, provided, that any 
recommendation to the City Council of any official control or Comprehensive Plan or any 
amendments thereto shall be by the affirmative vote of not less than a majority of the total 
members of the Planning Commission. 
 
9.3 The decision on any question may be reconsidered if, before such action is 
transmitted to the City Council, any member who voted with the majority moves for a 
reconsideration and such motion is approved by the Planning Commissioners.  Such 
motion for reconsideration shall take precedence over all other motions, except a motion 
to adjourn.  If such reconsideration involves an official control or comprehensive plan or 
amendment thereto, and the decision to make reconsideration is made after the close of 
regular consideration of that item, then such reconsideration shall be processed in 
accordance with the procedural requirements of Kelso Municipal Code.  No question shall 
be reconsidered more than once. 
 
 
SECTION X:  PUBLIC MEETING RULES OF PROCEDURE 
10.1 All persons speaking to the Planning Commission shall stand, approach the 
microphone, if provided, and identify themselves by name, address and whom they 
represent. 
 
10.2 All comments shall be directed to the Chair. 
 
10.3 Testimony shall be kept factual and on the subject.  The Chair is charged with the 
responsibility of discouraging and stopping irrelevant, unnecessarily long, repetitive, or 
abusive testimony.  At the onset of any item of business, the Chairman may limit the length 
of testimony.  Time permitted, additional opportunity will be provided for additional 
public comments after everyone who so desires has had an opportunity to speak. 
 
10.4 The audience shall not interrupt testimony. 
 
10.5 Speakers shall not question one another; instead a question shall be addressed to 
the Chair.  Upon request of a consensus of the members, the Chair may allow direct 
questioning of an expert witness who has previously testified on behalf of an opponent or 
proponent, or other business before the Planning Commission. 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 5 of 7 

  



 
10.6 If written statements are made, a copy shall be presented to the Planning 
Commission and the Secretary. 
 
 
SECTION XI:  AMENDMENT OR SUSPENSION OF RULES 
11.1 These rules may be amended at any regular meeting of the Planning Commission by 
a majority vote of the entire Planning Commission membership if the proposed 
amendment is presented in writing at the immediately preceding regular meeting. 
 
11.2 No rule shall be suspended without the concurrence of two-thirds of the members 
present. 
 
11.3 No rule that reflects a requirement of state law may be suspended. 
 
11.4 We, the members constituting a quorum of the Planning Commission of the City of 
Kelso, State of Washington, created by an Ordinance of the City Council, do this date hereby 
adopt, publish and declare the following as the Planning Commission Rules of Procedure 
and further rescind all rules previously adopted by this Commission. 
 
Dated this       day of     , 20132015. 
 
 
           
  CLARK HISLOP, POSITION NO. 1 
 
 
           
  RICK VONROCK, VICE-CHAIR, POSITION NO. 2 
 
 
           
  JARED WADEDANIEL GRAVES, POSITION NO. 3 
 
 
           
  DAN JONESCHARLES HENDRICKSON, POSITION NO. 4 
   
 
           
  PATRICIA VANROLLINSJAMES WEBB, CHAIR, POSITION NO. 5 
 
 
           
  TOBY TABOR, POSITION NO. 6 
 
 
           
  JAMES WEBB, POSITION NO. 7 

 

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 6 of 7 

  



Attest: 
 
BY:           

Nancy MaloneMike Kardas, Community Development ManagerDirector/City 
Engineer 
 
 
BY:           
 Stephanie L. HelemAmy Mullerleile, Recording Secretary 
  

Kelso Planning Commission Rules 20132015 
Page 7 of 7 

  


	PC Rules of the Commission 2015 Draft 2.pdf
	SECTION I: AUTHORITY
	SECTION II:  OFFICERS
	SECTION III:  CHAIR
	SECTION IV:  SECRETARY
	SECTION V:   MEETINGS
	SECTION VI:  AGENDA
	SECTION VII:  QUORUM
	SECTION VIII:  ABSENCE OF MEMBERS
	SECTION IX:  VOTING
	SECTION X:  PUBLIC MEETING RULES OF PROCEDURE

	SECTION XI:  AMENDMENT OR SUSPENSION OF RULES



